
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
644099 / 643513 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Democratic Services/ 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Iau, 16 Mai 2024 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
 PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trwyddedu o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft ar Dydd Mercher, 22 Mai 2024 
am 09:30. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    
 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 

Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 6 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 27/02/2024 
 

4.  Penodi Is-bwyllgor(au) Trwyddedu a Dirprwyo i Swyddogion  
 

7 - 8 

5.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod O bell a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy o bell Trwy 
Timau Microsoft. Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes 
gennych unrhyw gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 
01656 643148 / 643694 / 643513 / 643696 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
M Lewis 
R Williams 
J Llewellyn-Hopkins 
J E Pratt 
RM James 

RJ Collins 
MJ Kearn 
H T Bennett 
A R Berrow 
S J Bletsoe 

H Griffiths 
P W Jenkins 
S Easterbrook 
C Davies 



LICENSING COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2024 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD HYBRID IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER - CIVIC OFFICES, ANGEL STREET, 
BRIDGEND, CF31 4WB ON TUESDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2024 AT 11:00 
 
 

Present 
 

Councillor M Lewis – Chairperson 
 
R Williams J E Pratt S J Bletsoe RM James 
MJ Kearn H T Bennett A R Berrow  
P W Jenkins 
 
Present Virtually 

 
J Llewellyn-Hopkins R J Smith   

 
 

S Easterbrook 
 
 
 
RJ Smith  

  

Apologies for Absence 
 
RJ Collins 
 
Officers: 
 
Kirsty Evans Senior Licensing Officer 
Julie Ellams Democratic Services Officer - Committees 
Andrea Lee Senior Lawyer 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
None

  
 

24. Approval of Minutes 
 

 

Decision Made 
 

RESOLVED:            That the minutes of the meetings of the Licensing Committee and Licensing Act 2003 
Committee both dated 24 May 2023 be approved as a true and accurate record. 

Date Decision Made 27 February 2024 

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 3



LICENSING COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2024 

 

 

 
 

25. Application to Permit the use of Corporate Branding on Vehicles owned 
by Veezu 
 

 

Decision Made 
 

Cllrs M Kearn and R Smith did not take part in this item as they were not present in the Chamber and were 
unable to inspect the vehicle and therefore, did not participate in the debate and the decision.  
 
The Licensing Team Manager presented a report asking Members to determine an application to permit 
the use of corporate branding on vehicles owned by Veezu. She added that officers had delegated 
authority to provide approval for advertisements, however, as a full livery had been requested, Members 
were asked to determine the application on this occasion. The vehicle they would be inspecting was not 
currently licensed with Bridgend Council and the application was not for this specific vehicle, this was just 
to provide a representation of the livery. 
 
Members inspected the vehicle then returned to the Chamber to discuss the application. 
 
The Licensing Team Manager introduced K Oram from Veezu and explained that she would be available to 
answer any questions.  
 
Members raised a number of issues and were advised that: 
 

 All vehicles would be fully compliant with hackney carriage conditions including having a top light. 

 Apart from for the Green Fleet Pilot Scheme, this was the first application for a full livery. 

 The level of signage helped to make the vehicle more visible for passengers, improved safety for 
vulnerable passengers, it would attract attention and advertise the brand.  

 At the moment they had four or five hybrid vehicles reserved and should the application be 
approved, they would add them to the fleet. That would be approximately 10% of their fleet for 
Bridgend.  

 A driver partner could hire a wrapped vehicle from Veezu although this application was only for 
Veezu owned vehicles.  

 Only hybrid vehicles would have the Veezu branding. Veezu had recently replaced 40 vehicles with 
40 hybrid vehicles, within their fleet of approximately 130 across South Wales and the Southwest. 
They were doing this in stages with a view to eventually replacing all vehicles with hybrids.     

 If a vehicle was taken off the road for whatever reason, they would get the wrap removed as they 
would do with the plates. There would also be a contract in place to ensure this would happen with 

P
age 4



LICENSING COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2024 

 

driver partners.  

 With regard to concerns around vehicles being sold etc, the visual signage on the back door of the 
vehicle was a magnet and could be removed. The actual wrap was a sticker that could be removed 
but it could not be put back on a vehicle.  

 If a vehicle was sold with the wrap then enforcement action could be taken however the Veezu 
representative stressed that that would not happen.   

 It was acknowledged that other companies could apply for a full livery in the future.    
 
RESOLVED:             
 
Permit the use of the wrap on Veezu owned vehicles for the front, roof and sides of the vehicles. The 
Committee defines the wrap as the V’s only. The Veezu door sticker is permitted on the sides of the 
vehicle along with Council signage; no other advertising on the sides of the vehicle is permitted i.e., “eco 
car”. Only the wrap (V’s) is permitted on the roof and front bonnet of the vehicle. No wrap or advertisement 
is permitted on the rear of the vehicle, only Council signage.  
 
The approved livery is the same as the digital impression of the corporate livery, as submitted with the 
application (appendix B). Members reasoning for no livery on the rear of the vehicle and no other adverts 
was that the vehicle was “too busy” and detracted from the Licensing Badge. 
 

Date Decision Made 
 

27 February 2024 

 
 

26. Bridgend County Borough Council Taxi Testing Regime 
 

 

Decision Made 
 

The Licensing Team Manger provided an update to members on the feasibility study in respect of Bridgend 
County Borough Council’s (BCBC) taxi testing regime. She explained that it had been confirmed that the  
existing testing arrangements would run for the initial fixed term entered into between both parties, which 
would expire in March 2025. Due to this binding date, the feasibility study would now take place in the 
2024-25 financial year. This would ensure that Members would have the most up to date, relevant 
information to enable them to make an informed decision. 
 
RESOLVED:            Members noted the contents of the report and agreed to await a feasibility report on 

alternative models of discharging statutory duties in respect of the testing and 
licensing of taxis (hackney carriage and private hire vehicles). 

Date Decision Made 27 February 2024 

P
age 5



LICENSING COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2024 

 

 

 
 

27. Urgent Items 
 

 

Decision Made 
 

None 

Date Decision Made 
 

27 February 2024 

 
 
 
 
To observe further debate that took place on the above items, please click this link 
  

P
age 6

https://youtu.be/9u1zHWaEIBs


 

 
Meeting of:  

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
22 MAY 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
APPOINTMENT OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE(S) AND 

DELEGATIONS TO OFFICERS 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, 

HR AND CORPORATE POLICY 
 

Responsible 
Officer:  

                 
KIRSTY EVANS 

TEAM MANAGER LICENSING  
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

 
The report content has no direct effect upon the policy 

framework and procedure rules. 
 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

To propose the membership of the Licensing Committee 
and Sub-Committees following the Annual Meeting of 

Council 2024. 
 

 
 

1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to propose the membership of the Licensing Committee 

Sub-Committees following the Annual Meeting of Council 2024. 

 

2. Background  
 
2.1 At the annual general meeting of council on the 15  May 2024 they will determine they 

will determine the membership of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Licensing 
Committees for the municipal year 24/25.   At the date of publication of this report the 
membership has not been confirmed. 

 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 The range of functions is set out within the Council’s Constitution in Part 3 - 

Responsibility for Functions, relating to the Licensing Committee and Sub-
Committees. These functions include taxi licensing, street trading, and other general 
licensing regimes as required. A separate report is being submitted in respect of the 
authority’s Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 functions. 

 
3.2 It is proposed that the Licensing Committee continues with the existing arrangements 

and approves the formation of two panels sitting on a rota basis, each consisting of 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

seven Members of the Licensing Committee and chaired by the Chairperson and Vice 
Chairperson of the Licensing Committee where possible. 

 
3.3 In the event that the Chair or Vice Chair are not able to attend their respective 
 sub-committee meeting, a chair will be elected from those in attendance. 
 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would 

be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on 
socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. It is therefore not 
necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.  

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding and corporate parent implications arising from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from the report. 
 
9. Recommendations 

 
9.1      The Committee is recommended to: 

 

 Approve the formation of two panels sitting on a rota basis, each consisting of 

seven Members of the Licensing Committee and chaired by the Chairperson 

and Vice Chairperson of the Licensing Committee where possible. In the event 

that the Chair or Vice Chair are not able to attend their respective sub-

committee meeting, a chair will be elected from those in attendance.  These 

Licensing Sub-Committees will undertake licensing functions, including taxi 

licensing and street trading as set out in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
 
Background documents 
 
None. 

Page 8


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Penodi Is-bwyllgor(au) Trwyddedu a Dirprwyo i Swyddogion

